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{1:10 p.m.) PROCEEDINGS

THE COURT: Okay. Let’'s call the case.
THR CLERK: United States of America vs.
iSami Amin Al-Arian, Case Nuﬁber B:Oé—cr~??—T-30TBH;

THE COURT: Okay. Fo:-the Government,. we have
Miss Krigsman, Mr. Zitek, and ﬂr. Fufr; and for
| Dr. Al-Arian, we have MiQS'Horeno and, at the request of the
 Court, Jack Fernandez, Lee Eugate,-and they-have with them .
| Simon Gaugush.
Mr. —— Dr. Al-Arian, my understanding is that
.you're here to élead guilﬁy to a'couﬁt-in the superseding
indictment, Count-q.

'THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Youi:Honor.
14 THE COURT: As I suggested to you a moment ago,
15 this matter will take about 20 or 30 mipufes to work
16 ithrough( and it involves‘ybu andliihaving a conversation.
711 be-asking a number of quespioné, and you'll need to
Erespond to thoze guestions. 1I'm required to do this under -
anth, 50 le;'s:begin by ﬁavihg you -— you can remain seated,
'but simply raiselyour'r;ghtlhand;

THE CLERK: Do you solenmnly swear or affirm that

| the answers you will give to the answers propounded by the

24 lbut the truth?

THE DEFENDANT: I do.

Court or counsel will be the truth, whole truth, and nothingl-

b e = en




THE CLERK: Thank you.

THE COURT: I think, for purposes of the record,

we need to indicate that the proceeding is being conducted
in camera. A notice of the proceeding was filed. However, .
it was filed under seal. The public has not -- not been

_ale;ted to the pendeﬁcy of the proceedings.

My recpilection is that that ié at the request of
‘both parfies; and both Judge ‘Moody and I think it
:appropfiate in the circumstances that the proceeding go

10 || forward in canmera.

11§ ‘I am going to ask that the court reporter

12 | transcribe the proceedings and make that a part of the

;sealed record.w That Séaled record in relation tofthe plea.
14| ana so forth will be open to the public at ar appropriate
15 time: -
16 Mr. Zitek.
;75 MR. ZITEK: Technically, 5udge, the decision td
18 Ehold this hearing was made on Februacry 27th by Judge Mgody
lQé.at ;he reqﬁest’df the Defense and over the objection of the

20;§United States because the Uﬁited States -~ our posikicn
21 | '

22 ;the public. We made our argument at that time. The judge
23 ;cverruled i}} And so, we just wanted to —— in the record,
| we have éféontinuing objection, but we're otherwise here.

THE- COURT: = Okay. I think that the --< in those

'ordinarily is that hearings of this nature are to be held in




14§

eircumstances where the Government has made an objection
here, I think it needs to be said that the reason we ‘are
pfoceeding in camera is that this iz -- the plea thaﬁhis
going to be entered herg is in the ﬁatﬁre_oE a ceﬁditipnal

plea.

If T move forward and'fina it's freely anq
voluntariif eﬂtereﬁ today, I will eﬁter an R&R, whibh will
allcﬁ a Een-day objecticn period. It's poss;ble during that
Eperiod that something could happen to the plea ahd it might
10 [l not be aéceétéd; and in those circumstances,.the argument
11 §is -~ and I think it’s one that the Court has given weight
12 Eto — thé afgument is that it. would be unfair to
13 EDr._Al~Arian, were he in a positidn to héve to do to trial
Ein this mattér; if the factlthaf he had a;tempteq to enter a
15 ;plea was made a matter of pub}ic knoﬁiedqe.aingg thé -- and
16 ff since the sentencing would go forward féther guickly as ——

and the trial is not too far in the distaht fﬁture‘wére it

necessary to have a trial.

17}
18

19] I think Judge Moody and I both concur that it's in
20 Jthe best interest of the Defendant, and there are compelling

f reasons for allowing this matter to proceed in camera to the

25 f That transcript will be filed in the sealed record of the




1 f Court at an appropriate time

-The pleadings related to the.

plea here, as well as the transcript of the proceedings,

-

will be made available to the public.

We have one othef matter that I'd like to address
| before we get back to Dr. Al-Arian in the matter at hand.
There was a request by the Federal Public Defender's Office

-;to appear at the proceedings, and twa of their members are

il present in court.

It was .granted yesterday, but’' the —~ frankly, the

10'ff discussions that Judge Moody and I had were to allow the

11 {| pefendant to address the matter were there any other

12 )] objections to aliowing them tg procead or to be privy to the

13 j proceedings,

14, Miss Morenc, do we need to discuss that further?

15 § | MS. MOREMO: Wo, Your Honor. I did state my
16 f objections and had Miss. Guagliardo.put that before

17 || Your Honor, and His Honor apparently considered that .and’

18 || allowed them to be present.‘ We do .have concerns about the.

19 confidentiality of what goes on here. That was the
20 || substance of my objection.

21 THE COURT:. Well, obviously if we alloﬁ
-2255uiss Guaqliardo'and Mr. Beck, who repreéent fhe Co-Defendant .
23 5in this matter,hto participate, £hey're duty—bound t§ keeﬁ

24 || these matters private and confidential.

25 You understand that, Counsel?

e e e
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24

MR. BECK: We do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: The —— my understanding is that the
posture of tﬁe Fériz matter is not altogether Qiffe;ént from
| the posture of the Al-Arian matter; is that correct? Are.

| you heading toward entering a plea in this mattgr?

MR. BECK: We are involved in negotiations,

k Your Honor.

THE COQURT: Has there been a plea agreement
{ accepted?
10§ MR..BECK: No, there has not.

11 THE COURT: ' All right.

12§
ruled on the matter. We'll allow them to partibiﬁate, but.

14 || obviously the matters that are discussed here are private,

15 'confidential,_and:sha;l not be disclosed by those cépnsel or

lsg'anybody else present in the — in the éourtroom,bcday.

17 For the record, we have members of the

18 [l investigative team and otherwise just necessary courtroom

19 || personnel present today.

20 Dy . Al-Arian; let's get on with the plea here.

21 I just placed you under cath. The significance of

22 l[fthat is that I want you Lo answer my questions'truthfplly.

23 || there's no benefit to you in giving me a false answer. If
you were to lie to me, because of the fact you're under

25 || oath, you could be prosecuted separately for that lie; and,

Well, there being no new objections, Judge Moody's '




therefore, you need to make sure that all your answers are
truthfal. -

Obvicusly what you'do here today is a significant
act on your part; and, therefore, it's very importhpt that
:you understarid the entirety of the p;opeedings.,

If at any time I say something to ydu that you do

%not vnderstand, I want you to stop me and let me clarify it
Tfor you; or if at any time you wish to-speak to your
-attdrney, just let me know that, and Qe'll allow that.

10 The record should reflect fhat on two obcaéions
11 fduring the éroceedings in this mattexr fhe Court_haS‘lobked

12 f'to Mr. Fugate and Mr. Fernandez of the Zuckerman, Spaeder

13 :firm for assistance as -- acting really as friends of the
14 |[court; and in £hat‘capacity{ they have been involved with
15 ff the negotiations with the Governmeﬁt, aﬁd ﬁe_request that
16 | they be present again today. | | |
So, if, in fact, you need to speak to

Mr. Fernandez or Mr, Fugate or the iﬁhigratioﬁ attorney,
fMr. Gavgush, then feel free to do tﬂat as well.

Finally, this young lady is a.court. reporter.-
| She's attempting to take down every;h;hg that's séid in

these proceedings. 1 want to make an accurate record here.

| that reason, I need you to answer all of my questions out

250 loud. I can watch a person shake their head like this or

It will become a part of the public file eventually; and for

it

g

e




16§
17

18

3[[if vou would,
4 THE
s THE
6 ) THE
7 THE
8 THE
9] THE
_10 } English.
1l THE
12 THE
' 13‘ THE
12 THE

15 ffdrugs today?

THE

THE
jail?
19§ THE
20 | diabetes.
21 THE
22 établets?
23 THE
{once a day.

THE

like this {indicating) and know what they mean. She can't

|l take down a head shake, so you need to answer my questions,

sir.

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

COQURT : Hoﬁ old are you, sir?
DEFENDANT: Forty-eight.

COURT: How far in séhooL did you get?
DEFENDANT: I've got my Ph.D:

COURT: Obviously you can read and. write in

DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
COURT: -Any other language?
WITNESS: Arabic, and I understand French.

COURT: Under the influvence of any alcohol or

DEFENDANT: No, sir.

COURT: Are you taking any medications in the

“DEFENDANT: I take tablets for controlling

COURT: Okay. How often do you take those
DEFENDANT: One drug twice a day, -one drug

COURT Ckay. Are there any side effects to

g e ey
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10

that medication? Does it affect your thinking in any way?;

THE DEPENDANT: No.

THE CbUBT: Do you take any other kind of

| medication for any other type of condition?

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: Have you been treated recenﬁiy.at.the

1211 for any physicai ailment? '

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Have you ever, in the past or at any

io ftime during the pendency of these proceedings, been treated

13 iby a psychiatrist or psycholegist fer any type of_ﬁénfal

12 Econdition? | -
THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

14; THE COURT: fou thinking clearly_toaay?

155 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

16

THE COURT: All right. The —- according to.the

d sealed plea agreement in this case, the count you'fef

:pleading gui;fy to is éount 4 of the superseding indictméﬁ;,
 which iz — which is an éllegation that you cénspiréd:ta-
commit offenses aqéinst the United States.

We'll talk more about that in a moment:

Given the nature of the chérge, as you';elgﬁgre,

| this file has been assigned to two juﬁges throughout the

|
|
|
|
l
|
[
|
i .
!proceedings. 'I happen to be the magistrate judge qssigngd
' .

25 lto the proceedings; and, as you know, Judge Moody is the




' u_13,'

20

23]

25 |

11

district judge assigned to the proceeding. Judge Moody is a
higher-~level judge than I am.

. As-you'eiperienced, the trial Qf-these criminal
;m&tters'ia hefore the district judge, not myself; but the -
;rﬁleé say you can plead either before'thé.district judge or
'ﬁhe magistrate judge; and we —— because you get to make a
choice, I 'need to talk to you about-it._.

o We do use this written form that you wé%e
pfefiouslj présénted, and it appears that you éigbédlit,
10l along with giSS-Moreno. bo you:understaﬁd whgn'}oﬁ.signed
1

the form you were agreeing to have me conduct the plea?

12 F THE DEFENDART: I do.

THE COURT: You understand that when you come back

14 | for sentencing in this matter, that thdt séntgncinq is going

15 lto be befére Judge Moody, not me?

THE DEFENDANT: I understand.
17 THE COURT: MNow, I'm éoiﬁg ta eﬁplain thé-count
18 iwhil;h isldesignated by your piea agreémeqf as the pertinent
19- count, which is Count 4, in summar} te;ms and indicate to
[you the potential ppnishmént on tha£ charge.' Théq,lfm going

21 || to ask you how you plead, and you may plead either guilty or

22 | not guilty as you see fit.
As you know from having reviewed the superseding
24lzindictment-for many; many months and'having gone through a

trial in this matter, Count 4 accuses you‘of a conspiracy to
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11
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13
14
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© 16
17
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20
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23

24

“12

make and receive contributidﬁs-of funds, goods,- or services
which were for the benefit of the xslsﬁic Jihad, which
became at some point a specially deéignated terrorist
organization. ' ‘ .

The allegatioﬁs are set out in some detail, both
at the outset of the indictment‘and:in Count 4, and those
allegations essentially charge thatfypq compitted a -- a
congpiracy to violate offenses agaihst the United States.

This is a five-yegr offense, méahing that the
maximum punishment that cén be imposed is fivé years in
prison; and we're going to talk in a féw moménts-ahoub'the
fact that through plea.negotiations that amount has been -
redpced, but at this point I'm gequired to teil you the
maximum term, and the maximum term for a 371 conspiracy is
five years in prisan. -

In addition to théﬁ; tﬁe Coﬁr£lcan impose a fine
up to $250,000,‘and‘ycu can be placed on é pefiod of-threé
yeafs‘ supervised release, We'll talk about 21l of thié
punishment in a bit.

In addition .to the punishment, the Court is
reguired to impose a_special‘assegsment, king of iike.gourg
coéts, and the amount of a speéiai assessment is'$100, ;nd‘
that sum is due at the time or shortly after seﬁtencing.

Do vou understandlthe alléqatipns against:you in

Count 4 of the superseding indictment?
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13

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

.THE COURT: You understand the potential

punishment in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: T do.’

THE'éOURI:, As_fo tﬁis cha;qe, how do you plead?

_THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.

THE COURf:' Let'me explain to you that yoﬁr guilty
plea is a éiqnificant act. By pleading guilty, you're not
'oﬁly admitﬁinéithe charge, ﬁué you're, in‘effect, giving up

or waiving a number of rights that you have.

| presumption of innocence. You have a right to have a jury
Htrial. 1In this éasé, you have the right to have another

14 || jury triasl in order to contest the allegations against you;

15 Iand'at thaé triai, your attornéy would be‘permitted to‘_
assist ybu. -
17 As you'kndw from the‘last trial, in our system,.

18 fycu have a right to remain silent; and the effect of that is

12l that at this stage of the proceeding we don’t make you prove

20 || your innocence at the trial, we make the Government prove

21 gyour guilt.
22 |
23 ihave a retrial, you would be entitled to such a retrial, and

24 [| you would have the fiqht to the assistance of a lawyer. The

25 | burden would be on the prosecutor to prove the case against

'as you know, in our system, we have a right to thel

So, if instead,df'pleading guilty here you wish to

T




T21

14

{ you, and no one can force you to be a witness if you didn't .
choose to be. |

The —- I'm required to review for.§ou the
essential elements of this offense. They are -set out at
-pagé 2.of the plea agreeﬁent. The —— were you to trf ;hié
| count instead-of pleading guilty to it, the burden would be
{on the prosecutor. to bring in witnesées and evidence to
"prove up'esseﬂtialiy the four --— the five_elements_they’ve
listed here at page 2.
10;' "‘Esséﬁtially the Government would havé to show that
11 -

| two or more pecple came to an agreement, an'understanding,

12 f to commit some unlawful plan. In this case, it was to

B provide material support to the PLJ.

14 The second element they would :have to prove bsyond

1502 reaéonab;e doubt would be that the object of the plan was

16 ||to make and receive contributions, goods, or services ta

17 flthis specially designated terrorist organization.

18 The third element is that you were a knowing and

19 ;willful partiqipant in the plan. Aand then-the-Governmen{'cn

20 top of that wdu;d have. to.show that during the existence: of

the conspiracy, one or more of the alleged cb—coﬁspiratofs

22l in this case committed at least one of the overt acts which

23 [lare set forth in some detail in the indictment; and the

;Government would further have to show that that overt act

25 fwas allegedly committed at or about the time of the alleged

24

i e
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15

i

1 § conspiracy in aﬁ effort to carry it out.
" As you know from the last trial, what happens in
| these matters if you go to trial, at the conclusion of all
the-eﬁidenCe and the arqumen;s; the jury is advised as to
éach charge of the essential elements. They are further
iinétructed tﬁat if the Government has proved each of the
essential elements beyond a reaSDnaﬁle doubt, it should find
you guilty.

- As you also know, they'ré advised that if the

10'§quernmeht fFails ta prove even one of these elements, the

11 Jf jury is instructed to find you not guilecy.

12 If you chose to go to trial instead of pleading

guiltf to the count, the -- your lawyers could participate

14 | again, whether it would bz Miss Moreno or some other

15 || counsel. You would have counsel representing you; Again,

i6 they'could crass—examine all of the Government witnesses.

17 | They could try to keep.out any evidence they didn't think

18 | was admissible.’

13; The law allows that no one could force yvou to
20 ftestify if you did not wish to testify. However, if. it was

21 {four desire to take the stand in this second trial,‘ypu
22 }| coulad éertainly do so.
23; Addiﬁionally, you could call other witnesses in

24 [| your defense, whether they were civilian or law enforcement

25 witnesses, if they had favorable information to you. Xou;d
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16

have the right to subpoena thqse witnesses and make them
come tO court an& make them tesfify if that was goﬁr'desiré,
Now, I'm explaining the rights to you here_becausé
I want you to unde;standlthe full consequences of.the_éuilty
plea. |
As i say, by pleading guilty, you're not jﬁst.
admitting this partiﬁﬁlar charge, buf you are effectively
giving uplo: waiving each of these fights. By moving
| forward with a quilty plea, there will not be a retrial.
You will not challenge the allegations as they relaté-to
this particular charge; and in a short-period of time you
Iwill be brought back, and at that point you will be
sentenced. -

Now; do you understand that these arxe the
consequences of ﬁleading guilty? |

THE DEFENDANT: I do, Your Honor, but —

MS. MORENO: Your Honor, in the Court's recitation
jcf the first eleﬁent of the offense, I think the Court.uqed
the phrase "matérial support.™ Material support is ﬁbt‘
involved in this particular counk.

THE COURT: Okay. Funds, goods, or serﬁices.

THE DEFENDANT: - Yeah. I'm pleading to séfjices.

THE COURT: &all right.

The —— it's a disjunctive —- as I recall,

disjunctive statute in the Sense that the Government doesn't

et 1 et s




| have to prove all; they merely have to prove one or the

BN

other. .Buf you're conceding the services aspect?

[

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.
"THE COURT: O©Other than that, do you'understand the

o

!EonseQuenées of,pleading guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

IHﬁ-COURT: By pleading quilty, yoﬁ're ﬁbt'ééing
to conteéf'the matter; and in a short period of tiﬁé;
whenever the matter-is deeméd to be appropriate for
gentencing, yod.will be brought back anﬁ sentenced,

| Now, your lawyers have negotiated a ﬁlga.agreeﬁent_
hon your Eehalf, and thié plea agreement is in scme'résbectsl
ivery_mugh-liké a contract. What you say you're going to QO
in thé contraé£ we éxpect-you to do. What the érosécutor
'sayé’their‘office is gcinglto do we eipect themLtd.do.
"fﬁ:the broad sense, the plea agreement is.ﬁqt a

17 || contract with the Court. WNow, in your case, thers — this

is alparti¢ula£-type of plea agreement, and we'ire going to
;get into that in some detai]l in a moment; but in a bréad
sense, the plea agréement is not binding 05 the Courﬁ except
l where it indicates that it is. binding.

Aﬁd S0 £hat I can make sure that fou ﬁhderstand
23 ‘how ﬁhis ﬁorks; I'm going to g& through various aspects of

24 | the plea agreement with you, and 1'd like you to fdllow

25 along with me.- Obviously, if vou have questions, stop me -

=

e e e —.!

e et i e e
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is8

| and we'll work through those; and if at any time you need to
talk to either Miss Morenc or Mr. Fernandez, please indicate

that as well.

1 want you to begin by loéking at page 3. On this

Paragraph 5, the Government ﬁgs agréed with your counsel
I that at the time of sentencing all the remaining counts
against you will be dismissed pursuant to Rule 11.

10 Now, in the next paragraph, Paragraph 6 tﬁereL

11.H there iz an agreement thac the United States Attorney's

12 BOffice Ffor the Middle District of Florida and the

13 CounteruTerrorism.Section of the United States Department of

14,‘Justice agree not to charge you with committing any other -

15 || federal crimes or offenses about which the§~have knowledge.

As I understand it, the Government needs to speak to this

17 [l provision a little bit.

1B MS5. KRIGSMAN: Yes, You? Honor. I have beén
1% B autherized by the Deputy Assistant Atto;ngy General of the
20 fCriminal Division tolfurther bind:thé-Eastern District of
21 ;Virginia such that if_the_Coﬁrt accepts the élea égreement,

22 1 the United States Attorney's Office for the Eastern District

23 lof Virginia likewise will not charge the Defendant with
24 || committing any other federal crimes known to that

25 [|United States Attorney's Office at the time of the agreement
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10
11
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14
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16

17

18

19

20

21

related to .the conduct giving rise to the agreement.
THE COURT: Okay. -At the bottom of page 3,

there's another concession -— a significant concession that

has been made. The parties, your counsel, and counsel for

the Government have agreed that the appropriate disposiéioa
in this case-as it,relateslfo sentence will fall within'a
guideline range of 46 to 57 menths; and this is arrﬁ#ed'at
by a guidélines calculation which xesults in a digested
level of — Le*el 23 and a ériminal history of 1. .

Now, the plea ag:éement suggests that the Court

may accept or reject this aspecﬁ of the agreement or defer a

decision. Howevef, an order has been entered by Jﬁdge Moody R

as of yesterday-in which he has indi&ated that he accepts
the guidelipeéjcalculation'mgde —— agreed to by the parties
and as ca;éulated Ey Probéﬁion. So, in this cgsg; tbiS'is
an example of — of something that,the-COurt hES'EQEE?d.tP.:
ahead of time,:and fqu are assured that your seﬁtence will
fall within this range; and shouid something happen that it
does not, you'll be permitted to withdraw the plea.

If you go to thg'bottom of page 4, there is the

next concession that has been negotiated by your lawyers.

by the United States that they will make no recommendakion
as to the imposition or amount of any fine in this case. As

I indicated to you and as I'll talk more about in a minute,

At this section —- excuse me. In this section, it is agrééd _

a1




11 || facility.

16 || sentencing guideline range in this matter. In other words,

20

there can be a fine as part of the punishment. It can be as

2l high as $250,000. In this case, the Court will make no

| recommendation with regards to that.

At Paragraph 1G, there is a fﬁxther agreenent that

Government indicates that it will defer to the Bureau of

10 fPrisons to designate the appropriate facility and type of

And then‘next at page 5, Paiagraph 11, there is a

ot
L\

‘provision by which the Governmeat has-agreed'as:part of ‘this

o)
W

(=
o

plea ‘agreement that they will recommend-to the.Court that

15 || you receive a sentence which is at the low end of any

17§ it- would he at the low end of the 46 months. The low end

18 flhas been'agreed to.

15 Now, each of these pxﬁvisions'that I}Ye
20 ihighlighted he;e is a significant one. .It is neqotiépéd
21 fl with the prosecutor, obviously, to pﬁt ﬁou in thelbest

22 f possible posifioh for sentencing and, also, to.gét ydﬁ t&e'
best possible sentence. -

I want to point out, howWwever, that certain of

25 || these provisiocns ahd, in particular, the last one that I

e wana o
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1 I mentioned are not binding provisions on ;he_Court-: Thesa

2 || type concessions essentially are recommendations to the

} judge as to what he shoulé do with yﬁur sentencing.

Now, obv}ously, the Government, if this case moves
| £orward, wililbe required to dismiss ali reﬁéining counts;

i Lot in matters such as the recommendatioq rglated‘to a fine
Eqr the recommendation related to a'facility or the low-end
-dispoéition recommendation, these are, in effect, nothing
‘more tﬁan reconmendations to Judge:Moody as to what he
;D--should do at your sentencing, and vou need t6 be very clear
.11: that they're not binding recommeﬁdations.
12 E It is entirelg possible —- entixely posg;ble tha;
he may consider these represent;tiona'but choose to do
soﬁetﬁing different. This means that he may not recommend al
‘facility that your lawyer gequests. It may ﬁeqﬁ that he-
:wil1, in fact, impose a fine and fejecf the suggestion that
17 ) he nét do so.
sl and, in particuvlar, with regard to the low-end
19 'disposition provision at page S,lhe may not give-you the -
‘éo fbenefit of that recdmmendaﬁion. He might éee_sgmething in .
21 thé presentence report. He might hear something at
22 d sentencing. He might recall something from the trial.
23 There midht be'any number of‘fa&tors that could come into

play that would prompt him to detexmine that it is not

appropriate to give you the benefit of that provision; and, .
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if so, fou will not get the‘benefit of that provision.

In this instaﬁce,-ﬂnlike the guidelines
calculation — in this instance, these type of
recommendations,_bécause_they're nct.binding on the Cﬁqrt;

mean that if the judge chooses to do something different,

you will not be allowed to back out of your plea or withdraw|

your plea. In other words, if he doesn't give you —- I havel

no clue what you sentence is going to lock like, except it
will fall in the suggested range; but if he doesn't give you

a- low-end disposition, it's not a basis to withdraw the

plea, because that's how this type of provision ﬁorks.-'po .

you understanq that?
THE DEFEND#N?: I undarstand.
THE COURT: Okay. Good.
.wa,'obvidusly yoﬁf partlof the'deai ;s tﬁéﬁ you

have agreed to plead guilty tq-a disposition falling -- -

falling in a particular sentencing range. I want to talk to:

you about sentencing here and some other aspects of this

plea agreement:. I am certain that what I -say is going to be

repetitive of thinés you have been advised_of by your -’

lawyers. I want you to bear with me, however, because these

are -— I'm going to give_it.to }ou from the peisﬁective of |

the Court; and, again, if there's any gquestion about this, I

want yvou to stop me.

As indicﬁted, the maximum term in.this case would
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ordinarily be 60 months but, bhased on the plea negotiations,
is_a maximum term of 57 months incarceration.

| The Court, on your sentencing day, is going Fd
;cdﬁsiderlthe'agreement that has been entered intoc and will
‘again.considef the guideline calculations,-and you're going .
to hear some'discpssions on sentencing day about your
:guidelines and ‘how they've been computed. Even thdﬁgh'these
auideiiﬁéé,afe nét binding on the Court, your senternce has
5been_calqulated through the use of them. This has been
10 || found acceptable to the Court. So, you're going fo Héar

11 |} some . discussions about these guidelines with the —— if this

12 mapter moves forward with the understanding being that_the
rangé‘is 46';0;57-ﬁon£h3.

14 | - You need to be clear that as airesult of the plea
15 étOuEhis Eﬂargé you are geing to be seﬁtenced to a term
16 -ﬁithin this range and you will end up %erving_the full
17 || amount Qf tﬁat'3enténce. Under-the Quidelipes scheme, we

18 ldon't have early-release programs anymore. FPrograms like

i9 flparole where people used to get out after doing'g third of -

20 [ their sentence have been -done away with. So, under the

21 Jguideline scheme, whether you receive 46 months, 57 menths,

22 Jor something in between, you should expect you'll have to

23 fserye the full amount of the sentence. Statistically, the
24 || best you can hope for is a sentencé which would be

25]] 85 percent of ‘the term of thé incarceration. You can eara
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iscmélgood time with good hehav#or; but ; want you to
'ﬁndersﬁapd that even though your lawyers have locked in a
t particular range, this is going to result in the impcsitioﬁ
of a term of impriscnment, and you_shquld'egpéct that you
Bhwill have to serve the full amount of that term, whatever it
may 59. Do you understand that?

ITHE DEFENDANT: I do.

THE COURf: Dkay._ In addition to fhe term of
incafceration, which is assured you in this magtef, the
1qQ judée is going to consider the impositién of a fine. .Now,,
11 f whetner or not he's going to imﬁose a fing in this case, I
12 f can*t say. The imposition of a fine depends on a number ‘Of
,hciréﬁmstances, not the least ofiﬁhiéh is your ability to

14 fpay, but it is one of the forms of punishment that the judge

15 fcan use. In this case, it cah_he for-a# much as,$25bf000;
and- as you sit here, you need to pndersﬁ&nq that it's .-
17 lentirely possible that the-judge-couldVimpose‘A fing,:and it
18 [fcould be for that amount. You understand that? |
19 THE DEFENDANT: (Nods head.) Yes. -
20 THE COURT: That fine can beé in addition to any
21 lterm o# incarceration as well. :Dq_ysu understand that?
THE DEFENDANT:. Yes, sir. '
23 THE COURT: The Court will likely impose a term Sf

24 || supervised release to follow your term of incarceration.

25 |l supervised release is like being put on probation after wyou

—

[ ——
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have done your prison sentence.. The way it works is that
when a person is released, they're assigned to a prubation
officer, there's conditions put on them, and they're
'expéctEd to follow the rules. If théy break the ruleé, thef
iéet violated and they come ba&k to court; and if Cheir
violation is seriqus encugh, they can go to prison for
b;eakinq the rules of supervised release.

Now, in yoﬁr case, I'm réquired to tell yogu that
supervised release is part of the expected disposition in

this case, and I think the Court_likely wiil impose some

_iperiod.cf supervised release to fpllow your imprisonment;
}but, additionally, as part of your plea agreement, as you
are aware, you'ﬁave adreed as a condition of your plea that
;§ou will stipuiate to deportation; Thus, at page 4,

Paragraph-é, you agregﬁand stipﬁlate to deportaticon pursuaﬁt-

16!_to the specified provisions of thé;Immigration and

17 )| Nationality Act and further agree that yoﬁ'll cooperate with]| -

18 J the Bureau of Immigration in facilitating that deportation.

19 The Government, in turn,-indicates that they will

20 [Juse their best efforts. to expedite the deportation as well:

21 S0, while I think it is fair to advise you that

22 [| you will receive some period of supervised release as part

23l of your sentence, and if you-are released and allowed to

24 || remain in the United States, &ou should expect that you will

have to serve that period of supervised release, The
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greater likelihood, according to the plea agreement, is thét
you're going to be deported, and supervised release ﬁill-ﬁe_
a moot point at that point. You understand? |

THE-DEEENDANT:_ I do.

THE COURT: Okay. I want to ask you té go gogpége
&, Paragraph 3, for a moment. I al#ays pause in this. '
provision and tell ﬁhoever I'm taking a plea from %— 1
paraphraéé tﬁg first part of it for anybody I'm taking ﬁ
plea frecm. | ‘

" Here the Governﬁenﬁ says it IEServésﬂthg right te
tell the Court and Probaticn -~ that's kind'oﬁlaltgédy come: ;
and gone -- but to iell.fhe,Court things about you or this
crime that they'think‘are significant, and they resé;ve gﬁe:
14 || right to tell-the Court about all the crifes thétlthey:think'
15 [l yon*ve been invelved in. .

The réason I highlight that provision ié“béﬁausé,

17§ in effect, it allows the Governmént leeway at'senfenqing to

18 ] speak in aqgravatién if it cheooses to do so. Now,'this is a o
pretty tight'pléa agreement. It's intended to.get you.a
20 || sentence within a spacif;ed range, and I think you'il -— you
21 l'can be assured that.fpur senfence will fall:withiﬂ thét
22 rangé: otherwise, you'll-be allowed to withdraw youf'pléaA
25 agreement . ‘
24 It does not mean tﬁat the Gove;nmeﬁt will né;(

25 || appear at your sentencing and speak in aggravation against
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byou and your activities or the crime that occurred in this
{ particular instance. If that happens, Qou don't have to
!agree'witﬁ anything that they say. You will bave the
{bpportunity to rebut anything Ehey say.

| I simply always point this provision out to
indicate that it is not a breach of this agreement if that
jqccurs'-.,l because they've sort of ‘reserved that ;igﬁf despite
the fact'thét they made thesg othef_concgssions with you.

| . Do you understand that?

;Oi THE DEFENDANT: . (Gestures.)
11 (Pause;)

12 MS. MORENO: Your Honaor, the question with réspect

fto tﬁié particular Language uéed'iq Paragraph 3 of the
14-fseﬁteﬁciﬁg information where Dr. H;—Aiiqn.raised the
15 .que5§ion Qhen'Yoﬁr Honor indicates and uses fhg términplcgy
"crimés,% in this particular sipua£ion,.unlike‘most
situations, we're post-trial with scquittals and mistried
18 Lcoﬁhts-fﬂ |
19: THE COURT: I don't think you have to worry about
20 1Judge Moody holding any matters for which you were acquitted
21 Iagéinst you at all. The Government may seek to érgquthat

22 iactivity. but I don't think oh‘any counts yoﬁ’ve been -
23 lacquitted of you can -- you should worry about the judge

{ helding it against ‘you.

. What I — I'm simply pointing out here, so peopie
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fdon't get blind-sided as they move towards sentencing, is

that even though there are these concessions and the

Government is bound by them, in this case the Court has

agreed to the larger ones with regard to incarceration. If |
d the Government —-- I expect theré will be statements on both

sides at sentencing, and some of the things you hear from

the Government you may not agree with or appreciate; but

it's not a breach of this agreement, it's not a basis to

iback out of the agreement if that happens, because they

| resexved that right. You understand?

THE DEFENDANT:. Yes, sir.

THE CQURT: - In this case, if the plea goes forward

land it is accepted by Judge Moody, it will not alter at all’

the 'fact that thg éentencing range is going to be between-46_
and 57 months. That will be_a-given throughout the |
proceedings, but that will not prevent the. Government ffqm-
saying what it feelg is an'ap?fopriate statement at four
sentencing. -

THE DEFENDANT: feé, sir. )

THE COURT: Okay. . Go . to éage 7, bottom: of the
page, Paragraph 5. Now, this is standard language put in
all the Government plea agreements and still is. |
substantially applicaple-even in your circumstances. -This'
language is inserted in the plea agreement to cut down or

limit or restrict your-;ight'to appeal in this case. This
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language basically says that there are thres 3pepific ways
by which you can initiate an appeal. The first way that you
could initiate an appeal would he if your sentence was for

more than what the law allows. I told you the maximum fine-

] is $250,000. If you had had a $260,000 fine as part of your
Epunishment, it's illegal because it's more than the law

lallows, and you could appeal it.

" The second way that. this language says that you.

| could take an appeal would be if the guidelines were

} calculated in -a partiCular-range and the judge went above

that range. If dudgE'Moody -~-and I don't think-gouvhayé to
worry about this happeﬁing if this gces forward; but - if
Judge Moody.weré to bust the plea agreement and seﬁtencé'yéu
to, say, GQ mohths,-that‘s above the guideli:m_e-calculatj.onT
That would be something that you could appeél..-

And the third way you could take aphappeéi would
be if éomething'aboﬁETthe sentencing procégding vio}aﬁed thg
éonstitution.--

. Except‘in-those three cifcumstances, however, this
language is intendéd to take away yoﬁ: right to appeal. If
you read it caréfullf, it says that'the 6nly_othé%-way you
could appeal is if for some reason the Governmert apﬁealsg.
and then if that_hapﬁened, all bets are off, and you could
appeal whatever you wish. -

The effect of thié is that on your séﬁtencing day,

"

—
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when you appear, if the Judge sentences you within this
2  calculated range that has been agreed to, you're going to‘be

stuck with that sentence, meaning, you'ré not going to be

W

able to appeal it, even if it's on the high end .of that

hx

range, as long as it is lawful and constitutiocnal. You

understand that?
THE DEFENDANT: I do.
" THE COURT: The effect of this is if you got the

full 57 months, for instance, that would be perhaps more

THE DEFENDANT: T do..

THE COURT: The - let ne ask you, beyond thlS

18 || inducement to you to appear in court today apd'plaéd quiliy?

19
20 || conter?

21 THE COURT; _Yes.

22 {Pause .}

23 | MS. MORENO: Your Honox, Just very briefly, on-
24_.beha1f af any other inducements that Dr. Al-~Arian con&idered

25l in return for accepting this plea, we just want to bring it

MS. MORENG: May we have a minute, Your Honor, to

wpe
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to the Court's attention and highlight the deportation

issue.

We have been in coﬁversatibn with the Govefnment
gquite materially about their efforts toc expedite
1 Dr. Al-Arian's deportation. We aré mindful of the other .
example of the Co-Defendant in this matter and the problemsl
:that have occurred there. We believe the Government has
| exercised a lot of good faith and told us that they would do
teierythinq they can to assist us_in-expediting this and, in
10 ] fact, has shared informatipn with Mr. Pernandez and
il Mr. Fugate about the deportation.’

So, I just want to makg it clear to the Court that
inducement in this paftipulai'égreement was the expedited
deportation éﬁd_the_assistance of the United States
15 Government'in,helping fécilitaté'that_as sobn és possible,
16 - THE COURT: Okay.. Well, T think we've spoken
briefly to that issue earlief; But 1et-me_say"this: As T
18 :read the plea agréement, ﬁheré’g‘no guarantee of an
19 !expedited deportation; but wﬁét the Government hgs assu;ed
20 you is that they will make their best effdrt to try to
21 | induce ICE to ekpedite the procgedingé.

22 Is that correct, for the Government?

MR. ZITEK:  That's correct. What Miss Moreno is
referring to is that process has already started, you khow.

‘S0, we're talking about actﬁally trying to implement that
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particular provisicn. We're not -- we don’t want —- ;n'
order to exﬁedite it, we can‘t wait. So, we —— the
gagreement was writteh in that fashion, and we-are trfing td
carry out our side of the bargain, and Dr. Al-Arian and

i the -— his attorneys are trying to carry out their side-aﬁ_

| expedited fashion.
THE COURT: Now, did —— Iet me go back and get you

10 [ is: The ultimate determination by us has to be that your

1i | plea is being entered freely apd voluntarily and with a
12 f understanding of the consequences. o
13 ‘ One of the ﬁays that we measure the ﬁoluntarinéSS'
14 1 aspect is whe;he; there afe-;nducements, either apprcpiiéte'
15 fjor iﬁapprupriater These written plea agreements set“forth a
16 [| number of inducements. My quéétion to you is,.beyoné the
17 |l discussions aﬁd the efforts that:apparéntly are ongoing Qitfu
| regards to depqr£ation, have there been any other promiseé .
made t6 you that are an inducement in your miﬁﬁ‘to you.
entering a guilty plea? If so, we need to put them 6p‘the
‘record. . | |

THE DEFENDANT: I don’'t fecall-anythihg éise,
THE-COURT; Okay. And you understénd.the st;tusﬁ

| of the deportation issue? I think in the law "expedited™ is

a relative term. And it may not be tomorrow. As you've

it to see if we cén'actually make the deportation work in an |-

to answer my question rather than the lawyers. The questiorr-
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1 i seen in the case of Mr. Hammoudeh, it may be a matter
months.

What I hear is that the Government and your

w

| counsel are working to avoid a similar circumstance, and

5 !Ehey hope thaﬁ the -- that will occur much mbre

-6 fexpeditiqusly at the conclusion of any sentence, but there

7 are no'guarantees irherent in that. Do you understand?

' THE DEFENDANT: I understand.

11|
lé fpleadinq guilty?

' THE DEFENDANT: No. _
14§ ?HE'COURf: You think anybody has_at#emgted'to
15 ferick your. o '

_ THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: HNow, in the proceedings, you were

20 fleither Mr. Moffitt or Miss Moreno did on your behalf?

THE DEFENDANT: Absclutely not.

23 be withdrawn from further proceedings in the matter.

~ THE COURT: Okayl Apart from -— apart from any

préviouély reﬁresented by Mr. Moffitt and Miss Moienp. In

"19 y the broad sense, do you have any. complaints about anything

THE COURT: We post-trial allowed Mr. Moffitt to

iMiss Moreno has -a pending motion, which we have deferred .
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As I indicated —--I want to say this on the

recorq, and then I'm go;nq to ask you, a question. As I
indicated in the order allowing Mr. Moffitt to be withdrawn,
!although he asserted irreconbilable'éoaflicts with

;Dr. Al-Arian, I found no évidence of tﬁat. I think while
'_there maf have been disaqréements éionq the way, I don't
think the conflicts were réconcilable at ali.

10} I don't recall that Miss Morenoc alleged .

H irreconcilable confliéﬁs_in her motiom, and T certainly have

11

12 [l found no evidence of that.
Having said that, -since the trial and since we

14 | have a pending motion té‘ﬁithdraw‘that I héVE'deferred,fdo :

15 ]you have any complaints about-anything shae's dane during the

|

17 §

post-trial period?
THE DEFENDANT: Absolutely not.

18| THE CQURT: - Now, we'va alsa, on twWo occasions"

19f during the course of this trial, imposed upon Mr. Fugate and

21 jof them that the Court is —— and I speak for both

Judge Moody and myself -- that we are exceedingly gratéful
for the assistance that you've brought to the Court. This

f was entirely voluntary on your part and without any form of

compensation, and we're gratefiil for that assistance.

et e e e p i et £
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I think in the latter stages involving the plea
discussions, the invoivement was such —- and I probably need
to ask Dr. Al-Arian. Even though we provided them sort of |
as a sounding board for you and to give you an independent-
view of things, I think Mr. Fernandez was active in the plea
discussions. -Da you have anything — any complaints about
anything either Mr. Fernandez or Fugate or any othei lawyer
with their f£irm has done?

THE DEFENDBNT: I deeply appreciape their
iﬁvolvement. |

THE COURI: T take that to be no as well?

THE DﬁFENDANT: I have no prohlems.

THE CDURI:.'Kll riéht. Now, I'm going £6 ask the
prosecutor ta glve me a factual basis to support the plea.

There is' a lengthy factual basis. By my |
understandinq, the factual basis was neqotiated at. érm's
length. I am requlred however, to. put a factual basis on
the record; and so; you're going to have to permit us to
place that factual basis on the record.

I'm géing to ask you some follow-up questions:
about it, and I'm going to ask you after it'g been stated
whether or not you agree with it, whether there are any ‘
inaccuracies irn’ it, or whether or not you wish to correct

anything. Hopefully the answer te all of those is no or

yes, you agree. and there are no corrections; but this is a.
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necessary part of the proceeding.

If the Government would givé me a factuval basis.

MR. ZITEK: Yas, Your Honor.

As set forth in Paraqraph 9 and.subparagraphs of
the plea agreement°

A During the period of the late 19803 ah& early '
;to mid 1990s, Defendant Al-Arian was associated with séééfal
qrganizations, including the Palestinian'lslﬁm;c Jihad. |

Defendanﬁ Al-Arian knew that CovDefendahté Ramadan

B. On or about January 23rd, 1995, President

William Cllnton issued Executlve Urder 12947, whlch declarecl
a natlonal emergenqy regarding grave acts of vlolence
-commltted by fore1gn.terror15ts that Q1srupted the-Mlele-
East peace process. - -

| - E#ecutive'order 12947 prohibited certain
transactions, including the making orlreceivihg of anyfl
coqtribution, funds, goods, pr services to or,fof thé
benefit of orgaﬁizations-and individuals who are declared
specially-designated terrofisté.

Executive Order 12947 alsco made unlawful any

transaction that evaded or avoided or had the purpose of

evading or avoiding or attempting to viclate any of the —
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of the prohibitions. set forth in the order.

On January 24th, 1995, the Uﬁited States had
designated the Palestinian Islamic Jihad, Sheikh Abdel_ﬂziz
‘Awda, and Fathi Shigaqi as specially¥desi§néted terrorists.
Later that year, in November 1995,.the‘Uﬁited States
designated Ramadan Shallah as a specially-designated
;erroriét.

| - C. Defendant Al-Arian pérformed services for the

Palestinian Islamic Jihad in 1995 and thereafter.

. D.  8uch services included £iling for imﬁigratiorl
'benefits for individuals associated with the Palestinian
Islamic Jihad, hiding the identities of individuals
associated with the Palestinian Islamic Jihad, providing
assistance -to an individual assoc;ated with the Palestlnlan

Islamic thad in a United States court proceedlng.

The services are described in more particularity

17|}in the following paragraphs.

18 E. On or about Febrnary 6th, 1995, Defendant

19 lAl-Arian had a telephone conversation with a co-conspiratoxr

20l and discussed a recent presidential executive order against

21 fQterrorists.

22 F. Defendant Al-Arian was aware that the

23 || Palestinian Islamic Jihad achieved its objéctives by, among

24 |l other means, acts of vioclence:

25 G. On or abbut August 25th, 1995, Defendant

i  Fn e o o
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Al-Arian filed a visa renewal petition with the INS on
behalf of Co-Defendant Nafi.

H. On or about September 1lst, 1955, Co-Defendant

Al-Najjar wrote a $5,000 check drawn on the Muslim Women's

Society account payable to the World & Islam Studies . o]
Enterprise known as WISE, which was deposited into the WISE -
account. '

I. ©On or aboit Ocﬁober 25th, 1995, Co-Defendant
Al-Najjar executed an affidavit filed with the INS in |
support of Nafi's alien employment petition. - In the
affidavit, Al-Najjar stated that he and Defeﬂdant'hl—hfian
had sufficient financial means to fund Nafi's salary.

Al-Najjar further stated in 1993 he contributed $36,000 to

WISE; that in Januwary and February 1994, he had in exceésltnf_ "

$50,000 available to-supporf_tﬁé operaﬁions.of WISE.

J. On or about'Octdﬁer 30th, 1995, in the garly-.
morning houis, Defendant Al-Arian received a telephoné call
from a co—cﬁnspi?étbr in wﬁich the ¢o—conspirator aéked_~-
wheﬁher Defendaﬂt'ﬁl;érian had heard that Fathi:Shiqaqi;had
been killed.- Defendant. Al-Arian indicated that he had
heard, thén refﬁSed to talk.‘ ‘

Later that day, he had a telephone cqnvéfsatioﬁ

with Al-Najjar. Defendantlhl—ﬁtian indicated he wanted to

meet with Al-Najjar.

K. 'On or about October 30th, 1995, Co—-Defendant -
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‘Nafi made a -telephone call to Al-Arian. WNafi whispered

during this conversation, and Defendant Al;hrian said'fhe
l matter had been complicated and inquiries had begun..

-Lf On or about October 3Dth, 1995, Defendant

1the St. ?etersburg Times. When the journalist askadiabout
Shalléh being named Secretary Ganerél of the Paleatinién‘
.;siamiﬁ Jihad( Defendant Al-Arian falsely staiéd that
Shallah's name must have been mixed up with someone aXse and

10|l falsely sbated he only knew Ramadan Abdullah Shallah as

11 “Ramadan Shallah.

12 Later, Defendant Al-Arian had another telephone

conversation, w;th a journalist at the St. Petersburg Times.
14
i5 and surprlse‘and.falsely stated'there was noth;ng Shallah

16  had done while at WISE to indicate any political

17 {afflllatlon

19 lwas not involved in any ‘political activities while at WISE

20]{ and that shallah had been éngaged in only scholarly work.

21 M. On or about October 31, 1995, Defehdant_

22
23| sent from'WISE'explaining his mission and his experience
24 fwith Shallah and falsely denied any knowledge or affiliation

25 [ with any political éroup in the Middle East.

During thls conversatlon, Defendant Al-ﬁrlan expressed shock.'

Defendant Al-Arian falsely indicated.that Shallah ;

|l Al-Arian -and Co-Defendant Al—-Najjar caused a facsimile toIbé|

et s ayranne, e ars o] g
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N. On or about August 7th, 2000, Defendant

iil—ﬂ:ian, within the Middle District of Florida, had a
Itelephone conversation with Co—Defendant Nafi, who was in
iEngland, about utilizing a contact of Nafl in Egypt to
Eobta_:l.n travel documents for Al-Najjar. They then spoke
gabout Rafi's problems with his immiééation-status in the
iUnited States. They then had a coded_donversaticn about the
accounts to-which Nafi had sent monéy to assist‘in the
defense of Co-Defendant Al-Najjar's ongbiné_INS proceeding.

i0 0. On or about August 8th, 2000, Pefendant

11 ||Al-Arian, who was in the Middle District of Florida, called
12 |l a co-conspirator who was outside the state of Florida. When }

13 ‘Defendant Al-Arjan asked the co-conspirator if anything'was

i4 :dep951ted in his account or his- wife's account, the
15 =co-consp.l.rator replied that there were, quoter "ten shirts,"
unqucte {referring to -a sum of mopey), The Defendant

17 | Al-Arian then directed the .co-conspirator to send nine of

18l them to the account of another CO—conspirafor.
18 P. Later in the day on August 8th, .2000,

20 I pefendant Al-Arian, within the Middle District of Florida,

23 .had a telephone conversatlon with Co—Defendant Mafi, who was

22 fl outside the state of Florida and told Hafi that the,lssue of

23 f the magazines (referring to a sum of money) was resolved,

24 fbut the travel document had not been received from Egypt.

25 They then discusséd utilizing the press to su?port
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1 Al-Najjar in his INS hearing by setting up an interview with

10

11

12 p

14
15

ie

17

18 |

19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Abed Aziz Awda to show that he had the permission of the

Israelis to reside in the Gaza Strip. Defendant Al-Arian

| asked Nafi for Awda's telephone number. Nafi told him. to

call back the next day to get the number. Additionally, -
they discussed Nafi's response tao allegations in the press
that he was a member of the Palestinian Islamic Jihad. -

Q. On or about August 8th, 2000, Defendant

§ Al-Arian directed Co-Defendant Hatim Naji Fariz to arrange a

newspaper interview with Awda.
R. On or about August 9th, 2000, Defendant

Al-Arian and Co-Defendant Fariz had-a telephone conversation

1 about causing one or more newspaper articles Lo be written

on Awda. They desired to utilize those articles in the'INS

heariﬁq-regarding Al—ﬂajjar and wanted fo portra§ —— wantecl
them tﬁ portray Awda as alreiigiouslfiQUre with no relatioyp
to the Palestinian Islami¢ Jihad. _ |

THE . COURT: Thénk you; sir.

Dr. Ai—Ariqn, js that an accurate statement of
your involvement in the matters related to Count 47

THE DEéEHDAHT: Yes, Sir.

fﬂE COURT: Do you wish to correct any —— any of
the factual statement made by Mr. Zitek or add any ‘
additional facts? '

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.
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THE COURT: If you lock at the bottom of page 14,

2 !tép of page 15, the concluding paragraphs of your plea

3 | agreement indicate that this is the entire agreement, as we
have previousiy discussed; and then thgré is the last
sparagraph by which you certified that you read this élga'
jag;eement ih.ité entirety and that you understand it. Is
{ that, in fact, correct? . |
THE DEFENDANT: That's correct, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Is ther¢ anything about thé‘
ﬁplea aQreemenﬁ that I have said today that confuses you in
| any way or that you wish to question? -

~THE DEFENDANT : No, Yogr Honor.

THE COURT: The plea agreement is dated-
Februéry 28£h; 2006, and bears your signature, along with
;Migé Moreno's. Did you sign it after ybu‘réad_ité:

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did. |

1 TﬁE COURT: I always pausé at the end ﬁf the
:pracéss‘to tell wsoever I'm taking a plea from that'ié_
j doesn't mattei-td'me,-nor does it matter tq’Judgg Mbody;
whether Qou plead guilty te this allegation or not. We both
r93péct tﬁat you have an-absclute right to héve a-frial ;n_‘
Jthié case, a retrial if you wish. So, I always péuseta? the
énd of the process to say that if, while we have been |
24 talking, you have started to think that pérhaps you oughfl

25 not to plead but you ought to have your second tiiai, that's
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fine with us. All you have to do is tell me that, and I'11
stop the plea, and we'll put you back on-the trial calendar .
| On the other hand, if yvou're satisfied you’¥e

'gu;lty-or-you believe it's in your best inﬁerest to plead
guilty and that's what you wish to de, let me know that, and
I'11 wrap up the plea as far as.I can take it today.

Now, what would you liké'td doé.

THE DEFENDANT: I bélieve it’s in my best -interest
| to enter a plea.
| THE COURT: All right. I'm going to £ind that
| Sami amin Bl-Arian is an alert,'inteiligent individual. I'm
Satisfied from speaking with him today that -he's fdlly
13: cohereﬁt, that he understgndslthé allegati&ns aéainét him in
14 hCoupt”d.of thé superseding indictmént, aé well as the
‘poﬁgntial_punishment on that count. | |

I have explained to him the constitutional rights-

20 There is a written plea agreement in this case.

21 § It appears to Eoﬁtaih all the promises that have been made
22 ﬁo Dr. Al-Arian. If does -not appear that thére‘are ﬁny
Iinappropriate.promises or indﬁcements,_nor does it appear
that he hﬁs been threatened, forced, or ccérced in any way.

into pleading guilty.

LR
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The plea is being entered in accordance with Rule’

11(c) (1) (C}. However, as previously indicated, Judge Moody
has indicated his intentioﬁ to accept the plea and allow the
matter to move forward rather expeditiocusly for sentenéibg;
There is a factuai basi§ to support the
-allegations in Count 4 of the. superseding indictment._ The
befendant agrees with those Facts. Throughout the -

proceediﬁﬁst Dr. Al-Arian has been represented by competent

he’s had the benefit of ocutside counsel as well.

From everything that appears tc me today,.sir,
'your plea. is being entered freely and voluntarily with an -
undeistanding of the cbnséquences; -I'm going to so find anti
will reqommend‘that this'méttgr pﬁoceed forward with
santencing. | -

16 The way this wqué'is tﬁat I will enter a -— I

170 will enter a report and recommendation. There's a ten—day

period for obijections. At the conclusion of that ten days,

19 || if there are no objections filed, the plea will be accepted;

20 [|and at that point, your case will be set for sentencing.-
Do you understand?

22 THE DEFENDANT: I do.

23 THE COURT: Thank you.

24 Miss Moreno.

z25 MS. MORENC: Your Honor, I have a comment and

counsel with whom he indicates He's satisfied. In addition,

ma ey




45

[y

| your Honor, we would alsc like to express our deep

™2

3 féppreciation to Mr. Fugate and Mr. Fernandez and to Simon.’
4 TAsvthis Court knowsr after an arduous six months in trial,

| we immediately went into trying to resolve this matter. -

=t

We were dedicated to securing the release of”

Pr. Al-Arian in some- fashion, and we believe that we -could

-]

get to this place only with the assistance of these fine

m.

situation. Mr. Fugate and Mr. Fernandez and Simon have

those efforts.

With iespect t6 the report and fecommendation;
Your Hénor,.invxgading fhe.transcript, I had -=- I was -
;emindéd tﬁat-I had.agked‘yﬁu that. the Rgé waﬁ;d be in
‘camera tcd His Honor and that the sentencing, which I'm
hearing f;oﬁ the Court, would belsqﬁgtimé after ten days
18 :fromltodayg I —— I'm assuming.
19;
20 |
21 ésgre that‘Judéé Moody willlbe'in‘——.in contact with your
office about senténcing. If you have -- if y$u have a
| preference on when sentencing occurs, feel free to contact

I his office.

MS.. MORENO: And, Your Honor, we -- it was the

question very briefly. On behalf of Mr. Moffitt and myself ,

gentlemen 'in the finest traditions of being counseled to a

really assisted us. 50, we want to thank them for affordimg

THE COURT: The plea will not be accepted hefore

d the teh-day_abjedtion period runs. Once it's accepted, I'm

e s st

TP —
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fréquest of the Defense at the prévious procééding on
EFébruarf the 27th, and it is still our reguest, that the
sentencing be in camera as weli. . We can communicate-éhat'
| again to the Court. I did — I did wanpt —- |

THE COURT: Let me say this: - If you :éaé'the.
entirety of fhe order yesterday from‘Jﬁdge Moody,.hé's;
} indicated it will be a public proceeding, and I think
l-appropriately so. -

‘ If you believe it should be in camérg,jﬁhen_you
should file a motion asking him to_reconsider.that; put he's
| already indicated fhat it should be a public.proceedlnd.

MS. MORENO: I did not know about. the ordsr,
EYourlﬂonor. '

.THE CQURT: Well, there is a ~- an order énperéd
as of.yesterday,‘and we can certainly give yoﬁ éjcopfhof it .
Bﬁtfas he indicatés at the eng oﬁ the orﬁer, the seﬁtenéﬁng;
17 [ proceeding will be in publie buf; penéing the pﬁbiic-‘
18 | sentencing on all-of these matters, will, in fact, rémain‘iji
Is | I
20 to the — if you have ény_motions relgted_to the PSR or any- .
| notions related to sentencing, they should be filéd in
‘camera-‘ Hawever, at the point éf sentencing, i_exéeét thE$€=
23i matters will be opened up. .
24 MS. MORENO: The order that you're referrinﬁ'to

25 was under seal, and I haven't gotten.a dépy of it. That's

} camera; and any motions that you -have related,  for instance,. |
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why 1 was not apprised that he ha@ ordered it had to be --
THE CQURT: We'll have a copy of that down here

{ that you can review, if you wish. |

'MS. MORENO: ‘Thank you.- _

THE COURT: Anythiné else from the Government?

MR. ZITEK: Let me just check my notes here,

(Pause.; We havé'nqthiné further, Judge.
.THE COURT: Anythiﬁg else from the Defense?
MS.. MORENO: No, Your -Honor.

THE COURT: Good luck to you, sir;

(Adjourned at 2:10 p.m.) .
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